VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
PLAN COMMISSION
AGENDA

BARTLETT MUNICIPAL CENTER
228 S. MAIN STREET

February 14, 2019
7:00 P.M.

Roll Call

Approval of the December 13, 2018 meeting minutes

(#18-22) Moureau’s Crest View Addition to Bartlett
Preliminary/Final Plat of Resubdivision of Lot 72

. Old Business/New Business

Adjournment



VILLAGE OF BARTLETT

PLAN COMMISSION

IN RE THE MATTER OF: )

BUCKY'S ) #18-06

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS
December 13, 2018
7:01 p.m.

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony
taken at the public hearing of the above-entitled
cause, before the VILLAGE OF BARTLETT PLAN
COMMISSION, held at 228 South Main Street, Bartlett,

Illinois.
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December 13, 2018

BOARD MEMBERS

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MR.

MS.

MS.

ALSO PRESENT:

MS.

MR.

MR.

PRESENT :

JAMES LEMBERG, Chairman.

MARK HOPKINS, Member.

TIM RIDENOUR, Member.

AUSTIN HOPKINS, Member.

JOHN MIASO, Member.

JACK ALLEN, Member.

ANGELA ZUBKO, Village Planner.

ROBERTA GRILL, Acting Community Development Director,

also serving as Secretary.

LYNN MEANS, Traffic Consultant.
RICHARD J. MCMAHON for Petitioner.

MATTHEW ATKINS for Petitioner.
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CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: I'd 1like to call to order
the Plan Commission meeting for December 13th, 2018,
at 7:00 p.m. Secretary call the roll.

MS. GRILL: Jim Lemberg-?

CHATRMAN LEMBERG: Here.

MS. GRILL: Mark Hopkins?

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Here.

MS. GRILL: Tim Ridenour?

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Here.

MS. GRILL: John Miaso?

COMMISSIONER MIASO: Here.

MS. GRILL: Diane Negele? Austin Hopkins?

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Here.

MS. GRILL: Jack Allen?

COMMISSIONER ALLEN: Here.

MS. GRILL: Jerry Kallés? We have a quorum.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: We have a quorum. Okay.
Next item on the agenda is approval of the
November 8th, 2018 meeting minutes.

COMMIéSIONER RIDENOUR: So moved.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: I have a motion. Is therg a
second?

COMMISSIONER MIASO: Second.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Are there any additions or

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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corrections?

Secretary call the roll.
MS. GRILL: Tim Ridenour?
COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Yes.
MS. GRILL: John Miaso?
COMMISSIONER MIASO: Yes.
MS. GRILL: Austin Hopkins?
COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Yes.
MS. GRILL: Jack Allen?
COMMISSIONER ALLEN: Yes.
MS. GRILL: Mark Hopkins?
COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Yes.
MS. GRILL: And Jim Lemberg?

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Yes.

Next item on the agenda is number 18-06,

Bucky's, rezoning upon annexation from the ER-1

estate residence zoning district to the B-3

neighborhood shopping preliminary site plan review.
Plat of consolidation of two lots into one zoning
lot. And special use permits for an automobile

service station, gas station, car wash, package

liquor sales and outdoor sales and storage.

Angela, would you like to --

MS. ZUBKO: Yes. I would also like to note

County Court Reporters,
630.653.10622
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that this is a public hearing as well. It is not
noted on the agenda, but it was posted and all the
neighbors were notified, and I do have all the
proof.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay.

MS. ZUBKO: All right. The Petitioner is
requesting to annex two vacant parcels consisting of
2.18 acres and to rezone the subject property upon
annexation from the ER-1 zoning district to the B-3
zoning district. The annexation will be discussed
by the Village Board at a future date.

Petiticoner is also requesting a
preliminary site plan review for a proposed 5500
square foot convenience store to accompany an
automotive service station with ten gas pumps. A
3200 square foot car wash is also proposed along the
southern portion of the subject property.

The proposed convenience store will be
oriented towards Route 59 and would consist
primarily of eight-inch by four-inch CMU block in
two colors, terra cotta and cream with a stone
veneer on the columns at the three entrances. Metal
canopies would add architectural elements over each

of the windows. The tallest portions of the

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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building, consisting of the three towers would be

26 feet 8 inches, but the average height will be 21
foot four inches meeting the Zoning Code requirement
of 25 feet. And the car wash will architecturally
match the convenience store with CMU block and will
be 18 feet in height, also meeting the Zoning Code
requirements.

The petitioner has requested one curb cut
along Route 59 for access to the automotive service
station, which would be located directly across from
Norwood Lane. The Village has been working with the
Petitioner with regards to this, and there will be
ongoing discussions when it goes further in the
process.

It has been Bartlett's policy when
reviewing commercial properties adjacent to one
another that the number of curb cuts be minimized
and a cross-access easement be utilized between
adjoining properties. This encourages the most
optimum traffic movements and circulation patterns
between commercial entities while providing safe
access onto public roadways. The preliminary site
plan as proposed does not include a cross-access

easement.

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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The site plan does identify 59 parking
stalls including the two handicapped stalls. This
exceeds the zoning ordinance requirement of 36
stalls, and they do meet the required stacking for
the car wash as well.

The Petitioner is proposing to install two
eight-foot tall retaining walls along with an
eight-foot tall vinyl stone fence along the western
property line. A six-foot tall vinyl fence is also
proposed along the portion of the northern property
line. As shown on the cross-section, the subject
property is approximately 19 feet lower than the
residentially zoned properties to the west.

The Petitioner is requesting a plat of
consolidation to combine the two lots, currently
unincorporated, into one lot, and once recorded, the
lot will have one pin number.

The Petitioner requested five variations,
which were all discussed last week at the Zoning
Board of Appeals meeting, and they were all approved
or recommended for approval.

There are special use permits being
requested to allow for the automotive service

station and a car wash. The Petitioner has designed

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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the car wash to have the dryer portion of the tunnel
wash furthest away from the residential uses to the
west. There are four vacuums proposed north of the
car wash and the retaining walls and proposed
eight-foot tall fence along the west side of the
subject property should serve as a sound barrier to
minimize any noise emitted from the car wash and
vacuums.

Internal vehicular circulation for the car
wash would primarily consist of a counterclockwise
pattern with all vehicles queuing behind the
convenience store and entering the car wash along
the west side. Vehicles would travel through the
tunnel wash and exit the building’from the east.
Vehicles would then either exit the site onto Route
59 or proceed to the gas pumps or the convenience
Store.

The Petitioner is also requesting a
special use to allow outdoor sales and storage
including propane and seasonal sale items. Those
are located directly in front of the convenience
Store.

The Petitioner is requesting a special use

for package liquor sales including beer, wine, and

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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liquor. This would be the first service station or
gas station permitted to sell package liquor in the
Village.

Underground storm water will be relocated
below the southern parking lot between the
convenience store and the car wash. The preliminary
engineering plans are being reviewed by the Village
engineer and a final engineering, including storm
water calculations, will be required during their
final site plan review process.

A traffic study was prepared from Quigg
Engineering which stated that a traffic signal is
warranted at the intersection of 59 and Norwood, and
our traffic consultant concurs with the traffic
study saying the traffic signal is warranted. And
she is also here if you have any questions for her
tonight.

And the Village's land use plan identifies
this area commercial uses.

Staff does recommend approval of the
Petitioner's request subject to the conditions as
stated in the report and the findings of fact.

And I would like to note that this is

preliminary engineering approval and site plan

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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approval so they will have to come back, but all the
public hearings will already be done. The
Petitioners are here.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. Thank you. For
another public hearing. So tonight's public
hearing --

MS. ZUBKO: They will not have -- when they
come back, it will just be for site plan approval.
It will not be for another public hearing. So
they're getting all the public hearings out of the
way.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. So that sign that's
out there on 59 says public notice, not public
hearing.

MS. ZUBKO: Correct. Public notice or hearing.

CHATIRMAN LEMBERG: It is. I have usually seen
public hearing. 1It's a public hearing and back by
the clock ovef there, we have some sheets to fill
out for anyone in the audience that has a gquestion,
comment, or would like to have their say about the
project going in.

And Petitioner is here this evening?
Okay. Could you stand and be sworn in and anyone

else that's going to be giving testimony.

10
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(Witnesses sworn.)

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Thank you. Do you have
anything you'd like to add to what the staff has
presented? Will you state your name and address,
please?

MR. MCMAHON: Good evening, Gentleman. My name
is Richard McMahon. The address 2500 Brickvale
Drive, Elk Grove Village. I represent Buchanan
Energy and am an employee of Buchanan Energy and
Buck's, Inc.

Some of this will -- is redundant. I'll
go through it, rather than bore you, quickly. We
have some items to clarify as we go through it.
Everyone knows where the site is.

And this is a rendition we had of this
early on when we were -- about a year and a half ago
starting with what the store would like look once
it's built.

An aerial view is slightly different --
and this aerial view is what we evolved to. The
difference in the site plan is that where the car
wash is, there's now green space in front of the car
wash. And the car wash has been pushed further to

the south towards the property line. Otherwise,

11
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essentially, this 3D depiction is an accurate
rendition of what we're planning.

At night, this is also done to show that
it's designed so that no light trespasses off the
property lines, beyond the property lines.

This is a view of the building also done
by the 3D people that shows the design of the
building, and the blocks and the sizes of them and
the detail that goes into the building.

And what we're here for is a special use
for the automobile service station and car wash.
This is a landscaped view, a landscape plan showing
it. And we're also here for the special use for the
prackage liquor sales.

The floor space of the entire building is
5,520 square feet. The part of it that is open for
customers 1is 2800 square feet. The alcohol sales
area will not exceed 150 square feet. So that's
about five and a half percent of the floor space for
the customer sales area.

We're asking for a special use for outdoor
sales for propane and washer fluid. The propane
cabinet is depicted, one of them, that we have

another store on the lower left-hand corner of the

12
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13
photograph, and the arrow points to where it would
be positioned on the side of the building. And then
we want permission to be able to have seasonal items
such as car wash fluid on two positions in the front
of the building.

The site plan, again, with showing the
green space around it, and how it sits in the
environment. And the landscape plan, we have 264
trees and shrubs that are being planted.

Today they told me it would be $106,000
investment to put those in. There's quite a few of
them on the backside of the property. The
landscaping will be a remaining part of the site
also.

Now there's -- one of your requirements in
the community has been to try to maximize
cross—access with other lots. We spent a lot of
time working with the community on this and trying
to figure out how to do our site plan.

This is one version of the layout where we
took the car wash instead of having it on the south
side, we put it on the north side. And what we
have, and why we couldn't do this one is there's a

conflict with the exit and entrance driveway onto

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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the property with cars that are on the -- fueling up
at the canopy. And if we move the store further
south and center of the canopy on that it becomes
even worse.

From our experience, we know that doesn't
work to have cars coming in and people still right
in front of them with -- while they are fueling.

We looked at another alternative, and that
was to put the car wash on the south side, but that
driveway has to be aligned a certain way with the
restaurant on the -- to the south of us, and you
wound up having two conflict points. You have a
conflict where cars are exiting the car wash still,
perhaps, with a little bit of water on the
windshield, you're distracted when you come out, and
having to cross traffic right there in front of.

And then the second conflict point right

where the driveway is and the internal circulation

‘on the site. Both of those are highlighted with

circles there to kind of bring your attention to
those areas.

The utility plan, it's a little bit hard
to read it right here, but the storm water is going

to be handled by underground vaults. Underground

14
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15
vaults are able to withstand the traffic on the
concrete, and they will be between the car wash and
the end of the canopy completely underground. The
storm water is held there, and so it doesn't leave
the site any faster than it does under its natural
conditions. That's how it's designed. And the
piping will discharge that water to the north. It
will go off our site to the north, and it's designed
so that it goes over to the wetlands that are
further beyond the residential property to the north
and the other vacant property to the north.

This is a profile view. I just want to
point out that what Angela had indicated about the
difference in the elevation between our site and the
property to the west of us, kind of see this. And
off to your right is the elevation for the road.

And you can kind of see the elevation on our
driveway and the building, and then the two walls
behind the building, and there's a fence on top of
it.

And then you have -- Mr. Walsh's house is
depicted there in the gray. And we actually had
people out there on his property, on his back deck

doing sightings so we could figure out how to design

County Court Reporters, Inc.
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this so that if you're in his dining room or
kitchen, you won't be ablée to see the building. The
grading plan is here in case you have some detailed
questions about it.

This is the fence that we will be putting
along the west of the property line up on top of the
walls. 1It's a vinyl stone fence.

And then on the north side of the
property, there's Abram's property, a six-foot solid
vinyl privacy fence. It will look like this. We
have a sample of this if you wish to see it.

The fact -- why we do it this way is it
doesn't fade over time. You know, the typical
wooden cedar fence turns gray over time. When done
in vinyl, they stay in color and the design you have
on them for their lifetime, which -- and they are
able to stand hurricane forces.

So this is the view that was created, and
we worked with Mr. Walsh. And this is what it
looked like from his back of his house. 2And you
can't see the store. We'll be building up the
property and then drop down -- the two walls down to
our site. You kind of see the position of the

little character sitting over there, and that's a

16
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good point of view for reference.

We have no wetlands determination. The
downstream defender is a way of handling water that
discharges off the site. All the storm water that's
collected on the site goes into the underground
vaults. And then when it discharges from the site,
it goes through the downstream defender, and that
removes sediments, and it removes any oil that might
wash into the -- you know, from people's cars. Some
cars leak a little bit of oil. If there were some
that didn't evaporate, it would go into this. TIf it
was —-- it just is a way of protecting the
environment.

And those are serviced every six months.

A company comes out and opens up the manhole on the
top of them and takes out any of the sediments and
anything else that's floating inside those. They
never fail. They just work on the basis of how the
vortex that the water moves through the downstream
defender as it's exiting.

The underground tanks are double-walled
nowadays. And this is a cross-section. We actually
have one if someone wants to look at one. The old

tanks that went in the ground were steel. And over

17
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the 30 some years I've been in the business, I've
taken tanks out of the ground which looked like they
had been put in the day before, but I've taken tanks
out of the ground that you can take your finger and
push right through them. It depends on the soil.

Then the industry evolved towards
fiberglass tanks. And the problem with fiberglass
is they lack the rigidity of steel so they sometimes
coat steel tanks, but you still didn't have a
failsafe.

So what the industry uses now and what is
mandated to be used now on all underground storage
tanks is double-walled. And this is a crosé—section
of it. Now, they can be either dry in this initial
area or have another kind of liquid in it. But what
happens 1is, there are electronic monitors that are
constantly monitoring that. And if, in the case of
a dry one, they detect any moisture, whether it's
water coming from the outside in or fuel going from
the inside out into that space, the detectors sense
it, and they shut down the system completely. And
you can't start it back up again until you figure
out where that is.

All the piping that comes from it is also

18
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double-walled and is also monitored. And another
spot that we had a lot of leaks in the industry in
the past through poor hygiene was where the tanker
trucks would drop their fuel. Always after the
drivers were trying to get the last gallon or so out
of the hose, a lot of them had a tendency to drain
it right there into the manhole that the pipe was --
filled the tank. And over time that accumulated
fuel.

Those are all now sealed, and there's
monitors in those. Underneath the gas dispensers,
there are filters. And over the years, people used
to empty -- take the filter off, just like a car
filter, and dump underneath there, and that was just
open ground under there. And that's all sealed off
with monitors. So the system, if it detects either
water or fuel, it shuts it down, and we can't start
it back up again until we solve the problem. And
these are inspected by the State.

And I'm open for any questions.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: That's it? Are you finished
with your exhibit? Do you have anything else?
MR. MCMAHON: No, we don't other than answer

any questions you might have.

19
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CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Oh, yes, we have a few
questions I'm sure.

MR. MCMAHON: Okay.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: On your site plan, the copy
that we have has really small numbers. So if I have
an error in the numbering, okay -- or you have
several two-inch barrier curbs? Two inches? What's
that going to retain? We have it at the north side
of the building. You got one out at the island when
you come into the property, and you have one going
over by the stacking of the cars that go into the
car wash. Only two inches? One snowplow is going
to take that out. Why is it only two inches high?

MR. MCMAHON: Where are they located? I think
we talked about one out in the street, the driveway?

CHATIRMAN LEMBERG: Do you have the site plan to
put up there?

MS. ZUBKQ: The two that are east of the
convenience store.

MR. MCMAHON: Talking about those islands?

MS. ZUBKO: Yes.

MR. MCMAHON: Oh.

MS. ZUBKO: It says on there two-inch barrier

curb.

20
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MR. MCMAHON: Okay.

MS. ZUBKO: However, these are preliminary
engineering drawings so our engineer stated thaﬁ -

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: -- start stacking where the
cars are, that was only two inches. The island when
you first come off of 59 is only two inches.

MR. MCMAHON: We have them because unlike the
six-inch curbs around the property or on a street,
these are there for solely the purpose of providing
landscaping and breaking up the monotony of the
site.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So it's not there for a
safety thing? An automobile can run them over.

MR. MCMAHON: Well, I don't know --

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: You know, two inches, you
don't even look for two inches.

MR. MCMAHON: Excuse me?

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Two inches for a barrier is
not nothing. People run over two inches.

MR. MCMAHON: Well, but there's landscaping and
a tree on those.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So you're not putting it up
for safety, you're putting it up for cosmetic

reasons.

21
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MR. MCMAHON: Well, there's also -- it helps
direct people. They see what's there, and then it
allows them to move around. We actually initially
came in without any of those islands on the ends of
the parking arrays, but your community requires
them. And so we worked without them, but they are
there for helping guide traffic and also provide a
place for landscaping.

MS. ZUBKO: Our engineer stated that you would
probably make them do six inches when they came in
for final engineering since this is just
preliminary.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. Your car wash is
brushless or has brushes going through the car wash?

MR. MCMAHON: Yes, there's brushes.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: You use recycled water?

MR. MCMAHON: Yes, we do, and it's required.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: And at what point do you pay
for the car wash? When you first enter the tunnel
for washing the car?

MR. MCMAHON: No, the -- Matt is pointing it
out where the pay station is.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: That's where you would pay

for 1it?

22
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MR. MCMAHON: You can pay for it, or you can
pay for it at the pump, or you can pay for it inside
the store when you do a transaction inside the
store.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. Back at Route 59
where you have that island over there. You have one
driveway wider than the other. It looks like
21-foot exit the property, and it says 28-foot where
it goes into the property except that measurement
for 28 feet goes to the inside of the arc and not
the outside. So that driveway really isnut 28 feet.

MR. MCMAHON: We are working with IDOT on the
driveway, and that driveway design under IDOT's
jurisdiction will be worked out with them and is
critical to whether or not we get a traffic signal.
So it will be -- it's going to be -- focus of a lot
of -—- a lot of eyeballs, and it is right now.

MS. ZUBKO: Our traffic consultant can kind of
talk about that a little more as well. However,
it's currently under review by IDOT. They did not
have that island, but the interpretation of a letter
that we got from IDOT sounded like they wanted the
island in there, so we are waiting to hear back from

IDOT to see if that's truly what they wanted or if
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they meant something else totally differently. And
we will not hear back from them until the end of
this month.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So the in and out drive are
going to be the same width?

MS. ZUBKO: 1It's whatever IDOT wants it to be.
Like I said, we're waiting for their approvals on
it.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Who made this drawing then?
IDOT or Petitioner? Because why is it marked off
with a 28-foot going to the inside of the arc and
not the outside?

MS. ZUBKO: 1I'm not a hundred percent sure on
the dimension. However, their architect made this
drawing off of IDOT's notes.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So IDOT is responsible for
that?

MS. ZUBKO: So IDOT needs to approve this if
this 1s truly what they're looking for. Like I
said, there might be no island when it goes through

at the end. We're not a hundred percent sure what

IDOT was looking for in the comment they made to us.

MS. GRILL: And you'll see the site plan --

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Well, whether or not the
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island is there, the measurement going to the north
does not stop where the arc begins. It goes past
the arc into the grass area, I guess, what's going
to be there.

MR. MCMAHON: Well, they probably were measured
to the back of the curb, but this -- what you're
getting in the level of detail isn't as deep as the
level of detail that goes into it with IDOT.

But they're not equal on both sides
either. We originally had designed one lane coming
in and two lanes exiting the property. And we're
working with IDOT right now on a final configuration
that's acceptable. It has to line up with Norwood.
It has to function to IDOT standards, or we won't be
permittéd.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: They're designed so that
incoming lane is smaller than the exit lane; is that
what you're saying?

MR. MCMAHON: Yes, it could be.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So your drawing is basically
on a regular, average car. What about the great big
pickup trucks, the 2500s that are made by Ford and
Dodge and those guys? They need a lot more room

than an average car. They need a bigger arc to turn
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in.

MR. MCMAHON: This is a turning exhibit. It
shows how --

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Yeah, right there. Right
there. That drive. Right there is marked at
28 feet, and it's not 28 feet.

MS. GRILL: Richard, I think what he's looking
at on this plan is that it shows it to the back of
the curb versus the face of the curb. I think
that's what you're talking about, Jim. And that can
be clarified at the final site plan if you want them
to provide measurements to the face of the curb,
that's fine. That's fine.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: I thought I was looking at
accurate stuff here. Are we just looking at —-

MS. GRILL: This is a preliminary plan. You
will see this again.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Preliminaries don't come up
with accurate information?

MS. GRILL: And because IDOT has not provided
or approved the information.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Well, I think you guys are
pointing the finger at IDOT for the width of a

driveway.
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MS. GRILL: And this driveway width might
change again. It's possible.

MR. MCMAHON: This is not final engineering.
We've been through this with the Village. And in
working with the Village, we've reduced the store
from a 7100 square foot store to a 5500 square foot
store, and there are many other changes here. This
is preliminary engineering.

The actual dimensions of that driveway
have not been solidified by IDOT, and -- they will
be, though, and it will be to their standards. And
the Village will, of course, accept their standards
because those are the folks that have control over
this road. And their standards are widely accepted.
They have a book of driveway designs, and we have to
adhere to those. We don't get to freelance on the
driveways.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: But if nobody ever brings up
the guestion of why does that one say 28 feet, and
it really isn't 28 feet, everybody else down the
line is going to think, oh, gee, that's perfectly
fine and push it on through.

MR. MCMAHON: No, they won't. When it goes --

when IDOT gives us -- it will be down to the inch,
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and there will be no distinction between whether
it's to the front of the face of the curb or the
back of the curb. 1In final engineering, that will
all be nailed down tight.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. The underground
retention, that's going to hold how many gallons?

MR. MCMAHON: T don't know off the top of my
head, but it is sufficient. The storm water design
is also in with the Village and with IDOT, but I
think it's about three-quarters of an acre foot.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: And what happens after a
heavy duty rain, and it gets filled up. Then what?
We've been having 500-year rains quite often. Where
does that water go?

MR. MCMAHON: It would stay on the driveway
until it drains.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay.

MR. MCMAHON: It won't go out onto the street.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: All right. When you first
drive around your property, you're going to have two
ways to get to your car wash. You're going to go
all the way around the gas pumps on the back side of
the building, or you're going to go straight through

to where you start queuing up to get in line;
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correct? You're going to have signs telling people
which way to go?

MR. MCMAHON: Yes, we shall.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Again, there's no sign here
telling me that you're going to have the directions
of where you're going.

MS. ZUBKO: Directionai signage 1s actually

shown on the engineering plans. And, Matt, you can

show -- there'll be a no -- right where you were.
The no -- the one-way sign. There will be a sign
that says you can't enter the car wash. It's a do

not enter sign will be right there, but that doesn't
show on our site plan. That shows on the
engineering plans.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. So if you have the
cars on -- according to this drawing I have, you
have 10 to 15 cars stacked up back there, and
somebody just decided to have a car wash and not
gas, and they drive straight through, how long are
they going to sit there in order to get through that
line?

MS. ZUBKO: They cannot do that. It will have
a big sign that says do not enter, so you can't go

straight.
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CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: That's based on what?

MS. ZUBKO: There will be a do not enter sign
so you can't just head west. That is only a bypass
exit line if you decide to get out of the car wash
lane.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Well, if you can't head
west, why is there a sign that says no right turn
once you get to a stacking of cars that are behind
the building?

MS. ZUBKO: We'll have to take a look at that.

MS. GRILL: 1It's because it's a one-way traffic
lane. And if you would like signage --

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: I understand it's one-way,
but if you can't go west to get to that traffic
lane --

MS. GRILL: Because just like Ahgela stated,
that 1is an exit bypass for the car wash lane.
That's why.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So what you're saying then
is when the cars are sitting there, and car number
10, 11, 12 says, I no longer want to sit here, there
will be an exit so you can get out of here without
going through the car wash?

MR. MCMAHON: Correct.
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CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: But it's not an entrance to
get into the --

MR. MCMAHON: Correct.

MS. GRILL: And if you would like signage --

CHATIRMAN LEMBERG: Well, that's what I asked
about the sign. Are you going to put a sign telling
the people to go around your building, or is there a
sign that says you can just continue going straight
west, and you said there's going to be two --

MR. MCMAHON: No, I did not. I said that the
signage will be designed so the cars will go around
to the north of the building around the back of it,
and there will be signage that says no entrance on
that end of it. That's an escape. A lot of
communities require escapes for stacking, and we'll
properly sign it. That doesn't mean that if no one
is in line, and it's 8:00 at night someone might --

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So along with the no right
turn sign, there will be a sign that says do not
enter?

MR. MCMAHON: Correct.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. Again, like I said, I
don't have all the information here. It's all this

preliminary stuff.
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When the cars go around the building,
according to this drawing here, you have 12, 15
cars, and you have a fence on the west side, two of
them. Why do you have two fences on that side? The
vinyl brick fences.

MR. MCMAHON: Those are -- there's two
eight-foot walls. They are not two fences. Those
are eight-foot walls.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Yeah, why are there two of
them there? Why do you have two of them back there?

MR. MCMAHON: Because it takes two eight-foot
walls to get to the elevation. Matt is showing
right there where they are.

CHATRMAN LEMBERG: Again, this is cosmetic. So
when you're on your property --

MR. MCMAHON: TIt's absolutely not coémetic.
It's structural. See the earth. Follow the line
there.

CHATRMAN LEMBERG: Are we building a wall so
people don't get through there? Is that what
you're -- putting up two walls.

MR. MCMAHON: Right now, sir, the land =- the
land flow continues down like this. We're digging

out here, and we're getting it up, and then we're

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Bucky's
December 13, 2018

also building it higher up so that we have -- so
we're blocking the view from this property. So
there's one eight-foot wall, and then it steps in,
another eight-foot wall, steps -- it crowns, and
then there's the vinyl fence that is stone textured
on top of that, and then all the landscaping on the
backside here.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. So now you have 15
cars stacked up back here, and it's a hot summer
day. And car number ten all the sudden overheats
and starts on fire. How do the people in that line
get out of there safely? You don't have any exits
off of those walls for people to get out. There's
no doors going into the building. So, you know, I'm
just  making a hypothetical thing, but things happen.
So where is the safety factor for people --
obviously, they can't get into their cars and move
them. They have to get out of their cars. So how
are they going to get over an eight-foot wall?

MS. GRILL: They're not.

MR. MCMAHON: This is it. They can get out and
walk out.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: You got a building that's

115 feet long. You're going to have these people --
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there's no doorway through that fence at all?

MR. MCMAHON: That's not a fence. That's a
wall.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: But there's nothing on the
other side; right, except another wall?

MR. MCMAHON: No, there's dirt on the other
side of it.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. Again, you have no
safety valve for if something should happen in that
115 feet. That's a long distance.

MR. MCMAHON: I suppose there isn't, but we
don't ever have 15 cars stacked. We can go into a
study, which we have for some communities that show
you.

The old requirements said you had to have
15 cars were when we had, in the industry, the
rollover car washes like you see in Mobil down the
street. They are 44 feet long. You go in, it takes
about five minutes to wash. After a salty day, you
know, we would have 15, 20, 30 cars lined up for
those.

This can hold four cars at a time. It
moves them through. It takes one minute at a time.

We have kept a camera on our store in Vernon Hills
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for two years watching the stacking. Vernon Hills
is our busiest store, and we never have stacking
beyond six or seven cars.

There are also maﬁy other car washes now
in the industry that are a different part of our
market that offer a more full service. They have
people at the other end of it, hand drying and
whatnot, and those folks attract people. This is a
different kind of car wash. It's a different niche.
We have six or seven. Your ordinances may require
10 or 15, T don't know what it is, but we rarely get
that.

But in the apocalyptic scenario that you
just brought up, people can get out of their car,
and they can walk away. Just as if you were in the
Holland Tunnel going under the Hudson River.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: All right. Back at the
entrance of off 59. Whether they have a light there
or a stop sign. If two cars are sitting there --

MR. MCMAHON: We won't build it without the
light.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Pardon?

MR. MCMAHON: We will not build it if we do not

get the light.
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COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: That was my
question.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: If you have two cars sitting
there waiting to get off your property .onto 59, and
there's a lot of traffic going on, and the cars are
coming out of the car wash, your driveway looks like
it only has about three car spaces before it gets to
those cars that are sitting there waiting to get on
59. What happens to car number four that's just
still in the car wash and is about to come out.

Does the car wash shut down?

MR. MCMAHON: There's loops that shut it down,

yes.
CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Does it shut down
automatically?
MR. MCMAHON: There are magnetic loops that --
CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: How does it shut down?
MR. MCMAHON: -- attach.
CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: 1Is there a photo light or
something --

MR. ATKINS: Yes.
MR. MCMAHON: Pardon?
CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Is that how it shuts down so

the cars don't bang into each other?
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MR.. MCMAHON: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Anyone else have any
questions?

COMMISSIONER ALLEN: Well, you say it's
115 feet across the back so I mean, even 1f you're
at a minimum, you're only 60 feet from getting
around the edge of the building. It's not that big
of a distance in the end.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: I have a quick
question for staff. Is there any other gas station
or car wash similar to this that only has one
entrance into the property and exit?

MS. ZUBKO: Let us think for a moment.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: I've been
thinking too.

MS. ZUBKO: 1In town; correct?

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: In town. And

I've been thinking too. I can't think of anything

else. My concern is that if there's a traffic light

there, there's going to be accidents. And once you

have an accident there, everybody is trapped in this

gas station. And depending on the type of accident

that's going to happen, they could be there for up

to an hour or two. I really think there needs to be
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another exit. Even if it's just an emergency exit.
I -- in the stacking he brought, you're going to get
cars that are going to be stacking up just as you
get done with gas, or they go to the cafe or pick up
a propane tank, you're going to have -- when that
light is red, you're going to have at least five
cars or six cars wailting to exit.

So unless -- 1f IDOT is willing to make
that entrance where you have a dedicated left, a
dedicated straight, and a dedicated right. And even
then, you're still going to have stacking problems
leaving that -- leaving this place.

I would think that something would have to
be done. The car wash would have to be moved to the
other side. You would have to reduce your number of
pumps in order to accommodate the number of
people -- how many -- what's the traffic counts
going —-- that Bucky's will see in a typical day?

MR. MCMAHON: About 1,000.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: So during rush
hour, obviously, it's going to be a lot of cars
going in and out of there.

So what is the scenario if there is an

accident in front, and people can't get out and
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there's an emergency, and that entrance is blocked?

MR. MCMAHON: TIt's blocked till it's clear.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Has an emergency
exit been thought about?

MR. MCMAHON: No.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Has there been —--
if some type of route around bypassing the car wash
to the south, if somebody gets up there, and they
can no longer pay, and they need -- they can't --
and there's a couple cars stacked behind them, and
they need to get out of the car wash lane for some
reason?

MR. MCMAHON: Are you saying physically is
there a way to get out? No. There's a grade
difference between ourselves and the restaurant to
the south.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Those are my
concerns that would have to be addressed on a final
and -- because, I mean, it looks like a great
facility and a great idea. Everything looks great.
There's just the traffic -- the traffic patterns,
the traffic flow is going to be very difficult. And
will there be diesel?

MR. MCMAHON: We have diesel for cars, yes. I
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drive a diesel car. So, yes, there will be
dispensers on either end, but not for trucks.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: And trucks will
know not to go?

MR. MCMAHON: Yeah, you'll have several ways
that they know not to go. Number one, there's no
fast flow pumps for them, and a large truck wants
that.

Number two, it's not designed for a truck
with a trailer on the back, an 18-wheeler and
truckers don't like to mess around with cars. And
cars don't particularly care to have -- so it's
mutually exclusive. We don't offer nor do we
advertise the kind of payments the drivers of fleets
use.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: And then when
they need to fill the tanks, obviously, the trucks,
the semis that have to come in for that, where will
they be filling up at?

MR. MCMAHON: The tanks are over where Matt is
pointing on the north side, and we do have the
turning radius diagrams that show how those, the
garbage trucks and the delivery trucks will maneuver

on site.
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COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: And are there
certain times that they are scheduled to come, or
could it be any time?

MR. MCMAHON: There are trucks so we schedule
them when we feel it's necessary; and we would not
schedule a truck to come.in, unless 1t were an
emergency, during rush hour, but it's designed so
that the truck can align itself and dispense during
even rush hour and not interfere with the flow of
traffic on the site. The site is -- our distances
on site are greater than most other of our
competitors so it's free flow. We feel that free
flow on site is important.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Okay. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: What is the flow of the

refueling trucks? I can't see the little lines

on --
MS. ZUBKO: Hold on. Let me see if I can —--
COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: So they go west past
the -- and make a clockwise circle --

MS. ZUBKO: Yes.
COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Is Bucees, B-u-c-e-e-s,
is that part of --

MR. MCMAHON: No, those are folks down in
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Texas.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: That's different. I
was looking at some of your other stations online.
Some of them have some really nice veneers on the
facades. They look pretty nice. How come this is
not one of those?

MR. MCMAHON: I didn't understand the first
part of your question, sir?

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: I said I was looking at
some of your stations online today, and some of the
facades have some very nice looking veneers on them
to make the building look a lot nicer. This doesn't
appear to be one of those. I was wondering why?

MR. MCMAHON: It's the same building.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: It is? But it does not
have the same external surfaces. This is concrete
blocks; right, painted concrete blocks.

MR. MCMAHON: We have some here for you to look
at.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: It just seemed that
some of them looked a whole lot nicer than this one
you proposed for us. Do you have different designs?

MR. MCMAHON: We built some a while back with

clay brick. These are -- I mean, there are no other
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C-stores in this area that come close to the designs
on these, the elements on it.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: You're saying this is
one of your better designs?

MR. MCMAHON: It's our current désign. It
incorporates our best elements toward design. It's
the same store as Glendale Heights, Wheaton.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Same look that
was going in at County Farm and Army Trail?

MR. MCMAHON: No, there's some differences on
that one. That one incorporated a design that we
tried out in Texas where instead of the stone there
they have a white CMU, and we're not going to do
that again.

MS. ZUBKO: That one is also eight inch by
eight inch.

MR. MCMAHON: We're using a smaller block on
that one. They also, down there in Texas, have gone
to the eight by eight. We do have some stores in
Texas. We have three now. We were using eight by
eight by 16 block. And with staff's discussions I
went ‘and looked at it, the one in Carol Stream, the
eight by eight and agreed with that staff that we go

back to eight by four by 16, which is the size,
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brick size that you see in all the other stores.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Discussions are
continuing with regard to the stoplight?

MS. ZUBKO: Correct. Yes.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Out of curiosity, does
Bucky's sell top tier gasoline?

MR. MCMAHON: Do we sell what, sir?

COMMISSIONER RIDENQUR: Top tier gasoline?

MR. MCMAHON: It's only Mobil. Yes. Even if
it weren't Mobil, it would still be top tier, vyes.
As far as I'm concerned, there's only two tiers.
There's that tier, and then there's a lower level
that's a lower octane or whatever. We don't touch
that.

The motor fuel nowadays comes up through
the pipelines, it's basically fungible until you get
the truck to the rack. And when the driver punches
in his card number and whatnot, then the additives
are put in that make it different, what makes Mobil
different from the BPs versus Shells.

COMMISSIONER RIDENQOUR: So this is Mobil?

MR. MCMAHON: At the moment our vision is
Mobil, vyes.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: I didn't read that
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anywhere. Sorry.

MR. MCMAHON: Well, we're multi-branded. We
have Exxon as a brand also, although we've not done
one here because Exxon and Mobil are owned by the
same company. And we also have our own independent
brand. Bucky's is the gas. We are anticipating
doing this one as a Mobil, and that's what was shown
in the signage in the elevations so it will be
Mobil.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: I have some
questions. Can I ask a question?

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Uh-huh.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Mr. McMahon, I
think the project is great. I have a couple
concerns going forward. And one of them is the lack
of cross-access easement to the restaurant. That
would cure the emergency access. It appeared on one
of the sketches that you used as an illustration up
on the screen, but it doesn't appear in the
petition. Why not?

MR. MCMAHON: We were working with staff over
the past year and trying to accommodate that desire
for cross-access, and this was showing what we saw

as our issues with it and why we didn't do it.
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COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Why didn't you do
it?

MR. MCMAHON: Conflict right there of people
coming in and out off of 59 with cars fueling at the
dispensers.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: That's not what
you're showing at the moment, is it?

MR. MCMAHON: No, this is a discarded design.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: The honest gquestion
here is what stops the cross-access agreement
from -- or a drive from working between these two
properties?

MR. MCMAHON: Right there, there are two
reasons. This is one of the two. Where we're
showing you the driveway across. It has to be lined
up a certain way for the restaurant because of their
parking. And part of our -- it would create a
conflict with cars exiting the car wash and a
conflict -- a second conflict right there. We think
that that entrance, there would be too much activity
going on right there. Too many movements.

And then the other one is more of a simple
one where we move the car wash all the way to the

north, we have an issue with cars entering the site
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conflicting with cars that are fueling and the
dispensers under the canopy.

COMMISSICONER MARK HOPKINS: I hear what you're
saying, although I disagree with your statement that
there's a conflict with the cars exiting the car
wash and the cross-section. The car wash can be
pushed west or something else, not trying to force
myself on you as the land buyer here, but it sure
seems like it was discarded prematurely since it
seems to be so essential. That would be my
response. And I think it's a legitimate concern,
especially concerning the emergency access that we
were describing.

And I think going forward, you know, once
you get past the point of getting a light, then all
of these motions that come together at the -- and
wait at the light to make either a left-hand turn or
right-hand turn for a green light, they're coming
out of the car wash, coming out of the parking lot,
they are coming from the -- around in front of the
canopy at your 20 foot setback, and they are all
coming together for these two spaces where there's
no stacking. So they're all going to be coming

together at that point.
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And I think for our village traffic
engineer and for the petitioner in the back, we need
to address that stacking and waiting and cycling,
you know, during peak hours at the light. And I
think that, you know, next time you come around that
that's going to be a concern, I think, to get
approval through.

Then I ask you, please, what's the
construction of the retaining wall? What's the
material on the retaining wall?

MR. MCMAHON: Actually, I don't know to be able
to. tell you other than structural engineers will be
hired. It's going to be a masonry block wall.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: It's going to be a system.

MR. MCMAHON: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: So you choose the
color, and it's complimentary to your --

MR. MCMAHON: We could, yes. I never thought
about that, yes.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: It would be a good
idea if we could see that. There's many different
systems out there that we're familiar with and
others that we're not. It was -- there was no

texture shown on your prospectus. I'd like to see
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that because it's 16 feet of wall behind this thing,
so it's almost as important as your building. And
your building is important. And you've spent all
this money on landscape, and you proved it, you
showed how much, and all this money on the nice
walls. And in my opinion, you cheaped out on the
concrete block for the wall material.

So you might have tried it with clay brick
before, but I would urge you to try again rather
than go with a split facing concrete block, which in
the olden days used to be reserved for the back of
the shop instead of the front.

So I would ask you to consider that, and
that would be another concern I would have for you
coming back.

And then my last question for you is you
noted two places for outdoor sales. One on each
side of the front facade, on the sidewalk.

MR. MCMAHON: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: And that would be
the limitation of it? There would be no piles of
mulch éround the curb and piles of salt between
islands and stuff?

MR. MCMAHON: Your ordinances don't allow that.
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That's why we're asking for a special use to allow
only in these spots that we've asked for and shown
here.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Absolutely.

MR. MCMAHON: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: I'm done.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: When you were talking
about the crossing access, were you talking about a
permit --

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Yeah, that one
shown there.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: All right. In the
past, we have done emergency ones that are not open
all the time, haven't we?

MS. GRILL: That is correct. And we have done
Cross—access easements too.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: So even if it turns out
there's a severe problem with flow there from the
car wash and the entrance and exit and gas station,
we could at least have an emergency one that could
be opened in emergency situations.

MR. MCMAHON: We hadn't thought about that. So
it's an interesting comment that you folks have

brought up.

50

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Bucky's
December 13, 2018

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: We have done that even
for subdivisions.

MS. GRILL: We have. And I'm adding it to the
list.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Anyone? Questions?
Comments?

COMMISSIONER ALLEN: Well, the entrance and
exit, some of the problems be helped if we had two
lanes exiting? One going straight or left, and the
other one to the right instead of a single lane
coming out?

MR. MCMAHON: We don't -- in our negotiations
with IDOT, that's what we're struggling with. IDOT
has -- and they are kind of -- the way they put it
in their letter indicated that they would prefer one
lane in and one lane out as a justification for the
warrant.

Well, we don't -— we can't live with one
lane in and only one lane out because the wait would
be too long if someone was at that light, which
isn't going to turn frequently because 59 carries so
much traffic. So if there's only single lane out

that wanted to make a left or to go straight through

~and the light permitted, it would be blocking all
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the -- the majority of folks who want to make a
right-hand turn out. And we know that would be the
majority of the turning rates just because of our
study, and what we know of the area. So you're
right. That's kind of a do or die for us with IDOT
that we get two lanes off the site as well as one
lane in.

MS. ZUBKO: I'm going to have Lynn Means, our
traffic consultant come up and talk a little bit
more about that as well.

COMMISSIONER ALLEN: All right.

MS. MEANS: Good evening. And as mentioned, my
name is Lynn Means. I'm with Gewalt Hamilton &
Associates, and we've reviewed the traffic signal
warrant study and analysis, and we did concur with
the statement that we would also suggest the two
lane exiting to minimize the cubing and stacking.

As you're aware with similar signals that
are located along Route 59, the side streets don't
get a significant amount of green time, of time that
you would have to exit. So having those two lanes
would definitely facilitate the exiting maneuvers.

Related to how the traffic signals are

warranted, there's engineering judgment in some
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interpretation to the MUTCD, which is the Manual
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, which is the
guiding factor for traffic installations. And so a
two-lane approach such as this, we would consider
almost a one-lane exiting for volume warrants just
because of the way that it functions, that it's not
truly two lanes deep. It would have to be over a
hundred 50 feet of storage lane plus tapers-to
really only be functioning as two true lanes.
You're almost getting two short lanes that are
really -- it's almost operating really like a
one-lane approach as far as the analysis goes. So I
think some of that negotiation between their
consultant and IDOT is some of that interpretation
of the code and the analysis for those warrants.
But we would concur that two lanes would be critical
to have the site function well internally.

I don't know if there's any other
questions that you have for me while I'm here. If I
could, I'd be happy to address them. I jotted in my
notes beforehand that I concur with, you know, if
it's possible to get that emergency access in that
location where it may not function as a cross-access

continuously open, definitely as an emergency access

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Bucky's
December 13, 2018

that has validity to being, you know, possibly
getting it more looked at if that's a possibility as
well, too.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: If the light went in
there, there would be dedicated left turn lane --

MS. MEANS: Yes. There would be a dedicated
northbound left turn lane. That's part of their
analysis that they had as well. So there would be a
left turn lane, its own signal so it would get, you
know, an arrow so they could turn in on that arrow
as well going into the site.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Is there a deceleration
lane --

MS. ZUBKO: No.

MS. GRILL: I don't believe so.

MS. MEANS: And IDOT would, you know, consider
and evaluate too whether or not -- I haven't seen
that -- but whether they would want to add any
deceleration lane in the southbound direction as
well as part of the signal installation. That would
be part of their analysis as well to evaluate if
that's deemed necessary based on the volumes as
well.

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Yet to be decided.
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MS. MEANS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Anyone else have questions?
Comments?

COMMISSIONER MIASO: No.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: No.

COMMISSIONER ALLEN: No.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: At this time, I'11 open it
up for public. Is there anyone in the public that
has any question? Comment? Anyone at all. Okay.
Close the public portion of it.

Any other further comments from anybody?
Okay. Angela or Roberta, you want this all done in
one vote, or do you want to --

MS. ZUBKO: That is up to you, your feeling how
everyone has spoken.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Does anyone have any
objection to doing just one vote?

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: I'm wondering if
we want something in there that states emergency
access or —-

MS. GRILL: Can I go over what I think? I took
some notes, and I'd like to go over that with you to
make sure that we're on the same page of what you

want staff to continue to work with Petitioner on;
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is that okay?

All right. So I have directional signage.
I have stacking and cycling with regard to the light
and the curb cut on 59. Looking at the traffic
flow. Building materials.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Wall materials.

MS. GRILL: It's coming. Curb cut design.

And, again, that's primarily IDOT's jurisdiction,
but, you know, we do have our traffic consultant,
and we will take a closer loock at that with IDOT and
the Petitioner.

Emergency access. I've got lack of a
cross-access easement, which also ties into the
emergency access possibly. We'll see. And then
I've got the color of the block to match the, let's
see, the color of the wall block; correct?

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Somebody makes a
choice, a conscious choice --

MS. GRILL: To coordinate architecturally and
color match with the fence, the wall fence; is that
correct, Mark? You want the block of the retaining
wall?

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: I think we'd like

to see the proposal.
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MS. GRILL: And that's what I have. Did I miss

anything?

MS. ZUBKO: Yes. Curb height.

MS. GRILL: And the curb. 1I've got that as the

height of the curb; correct, Jim? Your curb height?

Six-inch curb height. That's a requirement from our
village engineer. It's a requirement. He's going
to have to do it so -- but I can add that onto the
list.

CHATIRMAN LEMBERG: Sure.

MS. GRILL: Anything else?

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Just -- and you
can add this as part of the emergency access just
some type of better explanation to if somebody
doesn't -- can't pay when they get to the entrance
of the car wash.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: What do they do?

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: What do they do?

MS. GRILL: Okay. So at the pay station.
Concerns with pay station and emergency exit.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Yes. Correct.
Now, do those things have to be worked in the
motion, or is that something that you'll work

with —--
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MS. GRILL: Put that in the motion.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Everything on her list.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Everything on
Roberta's 1list.

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: This is preliminary
approval.

MS. GRILL: Yes. And you will see this again,
so staff will still be working with Petitioner, but
I just wanted it on the record that these were your
concerns.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Right. All
right.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. You got yoﬁr list?

MS. GRILL: I got my list. It's on the record.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: So then do it all in one
motion; one vote?

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: I'm comfortable
with that.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Before I ask for a motion,
I'd like to state that I'd like to see the project
come through, but I have a problem with the findings
of fact in number three where it says circulation
within the site provides for safe and efficient

movement of traffic. I really have trouble with

County Court Reporters, Inc.
630.653.1622




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Bucky's
December 13, 2018

that, you know.

Somebody goes to the vacuum over here and
then wants to get into the car wash, got to go
through all the traffic by the gas pumps or by the
store in order to get into the line. Again, that's
all. 1It's a lot of problems so --

MS. ZUBKO: We can take a look at that, too,
when we do final engineering. I mean, we'll talk to
éhe Petitioner about it.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. Is there a motion
then to approve the -- motion to approve
Petitioner's request for re-zoning upon annexation
from the ER-1 zoning district to B-3, preliminary
site plan revieQ, plat of consolidation of two lots
into one zoning, and the special use permits for
automobile, gas station, car wash, package liquor
sales, and outdoor sales and storage subject to the
following conditions and findings of fact, and the
list that Roberta has?

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: So moved.

COMMISSIONER MIASO: Second.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Any further discussion?
Secretary, call the roll. |

MS. GRILL: John Miaso?
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COMMISSIONER MIASO. Yes.

MS. GRILL: Austin Hopkins?

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Yes.

MS. GRILL: Jack Allen?

COMMISSIONER ALLEN: Yes.

MS. GRILL: Mark Hopkins?

COMMISSIONER MARK HOPKINS: Yes.

MS. GRILL: Tim Ridenour?

COMMISSIONER RIDENOUR: Yes.

MS. GRILL: And Jim Lemberg?

CHATIRMAN LEMBERG: Yes.

MS. GRILL: Motion carried.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Okay. So done.

MR. MCMAHON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Next item on our agenda is
old business/new business.

MS. GRILL: We just want to say thank you.
You've got a small token of our appreciation
tonight. Some of you got a little more than others
depending on your -- 1f you hit a milestone on your
years of service. You have a little something in
your bag, but we Jjust want to say thank you very
much. It's much appreciated.

COMMISSIONER AUSTIN HOPKINS: Thank you.
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COMMISSIONER ALLEN: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN LEMBERG: Anyone else have any old
business/new business? Okay. And then do we have a
motion to adjourn? All in favor say aye.
(Ayes heard).

CHATRMAN LEMBERG: Opposed?
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS:
COUNTY OF K A N E )

I, Timi M. Fulfs, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the State of Illinois and Notary Public
of the County of Kane, do hereby certify that I
reported in shorthand the proceedings had at the
examination aforesaid, and the foregoing is a true,
complete and correct transcript of the proceedings
of said hearing as appears from my stenographic
notes so taken and transcribed under my personal
direction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do heréunto set my
hand and affix my notarial seal this 9th day of

January, 2019.

Timi M. Fulfs, CSR, RPR
C.S.R. Certificate No. 084-003517

Notary Public, Kane County, Illinois
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MEMORANDUM

19-013
DATE: February 7, 2019
TO: The Chairman and Members of the Plan Commission
FROM: Angela L Zubko, Community Development Planner
RE: (#18-22) Resubdivision of Lot 72 Moureau’s Crest View Addition to Bartlett
PETITIONER

Attorney Ahmed Motiwala on behalf of JASY Construction Engineering Consultants
Corporation (Owners)

SUBJECT SITE

Lot 72 of the Moureau's Crest View Addition to Bartlett (northwest corner of North Chase
and East North Avenues)

REQUESTS
Preliminary/Final Plat of Resubdivision

SURROUNDING LAND USES

Land Use Comprehensive Plan Zoning
Subject Site  Vacant Village Center Residential SR-4
North Single-Family Village Center Residential SR-4
South Multi-Family Atftached Residential- Med. Den. SR-6 °
East Single-Family Village Center Residential SR-4
West Single-Family Village Center Residential SR-4

ZONING HISTORY

Through the Staff's research and as shown on the Village's Annexation Map, this parcel
has been part of Bartlett since its incorporation in 1891 and was shown on the Village's
first Zoning Map (1941) as part of the Residential District. The Moureau's Crest View
Addition to Bartlett was platted and recorded in 1926. According to the 1962 Zoning
Map the property was zoned R-1 Single Family Residence. During the comprehensive
rezoning of the Village in 1978, the property was rezoned to the SR-4 Suburban Residence
Zoning District.

CURRENT DISCUSSION

1. The Petitioner is requesting a Preliminary/Final Plat of Resubdivision for Lot 72 of the
Moureau's Crest View Addition to Bartlett. The 13,878 square foot (0.318 acre)
vacant parcel would be resubdivided to create two single family lofs.



CD Memo 19-013
February 7, 2019
Page 2 of 2

e

Lot 1 consisting of 6,166 square feet and Lot 2 consisting of 7,713 square feet would
both meet the minimum lot standards for the SR-4 Zoning District; including the 60 ft.
minimum lot width and the 6,000 sq. ft. minimum lot size requirements. Lot 1 would
have access off of E. North Avenue and Lot 2 would have access off North Chase
Avenue.

3. The Preliminary/Final Plat of Resubdivision includes public utility and drainage
easements along all property lines in accordance with the Subdivision Ordinance.

4. Since the subject property is less than 3 acres, no detention is required for this
subdivision. However, PCBMPs (Post-Construction Best Management Practices) will
e required on an individual lot basis if the new impervious area is more than 2,500
square feet to meet the DuPage County Stormwater Ordinance regulations. (This
will be reviewed by the Building and Public Works Departments during the building
permit review process.)

5. As required in the Subdivision Ordinance, the Petitioner will plant parkway trees
along the existing rights-of-way spaced not less than forty feet (40') nor more than
sixty feet (60') apart.

6. There are existing concrete sidewalks along North Chase Avenue and E. North
Avenue that are currently deteriorating. As part of the subdivision requirements,
these sidewalks will be removed and replaced.

7. The Petitioner is also requesting two variations:

a} A 4foot reduction from the required 45 foot rear yard on Lot 1; and

b) A9 foot reduction from the required 45 foot rear yard on Lot 2.
(The Variations will be discussed by the Zoning Board of Appeals at their meeting on
March 7, 2019).

8. This project would result in a net density of 6.3 dwelling units/net acre and is
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan which designates the area as “Village
Center Residential, 5-7 dwelling units/net acre”.

9. The Engineering Plans are currently being reviewed.

10. New addresses will be assigned to each of the lots if the subdivision is approved.

RECOMMENDATION

1. The Staff recommends approval of the petitioner's request subject to the following

conditions and Findings of Fact:
A. Staff approval of the Engineering Plans;
B. A public improvements completion agreement (PICA) must be submitted
and approved by the Village Board; and
C. Building permits shall be required for all construction activities.
o Background materials are attached for your review and consideration.

alz/attachments x\comdev\mem?2019\013_Resubdivision of Lot 72 Moureaus Crest View_pc.docx



4438 Oakton Street
Skokie, IL 60076
Phone 847.786.8959 | Fax 847.786.8998

@ www.MALawtllinois.com

- Ahmed Motiwala, Esq.
LAW FI’_R_M’ PC. Ahmed@malawillinois.com

January 3, 2019

‘ COMpyp/ECENVED
President and Board of Trustees EVELOPME NY
Village of Bartlett JAN 03 2
228 S. Main Street, 9
Bartlett, IL 60103 V"-LAG
> E e
BART gy

RE: Resubdivision of Lot 72 Moureau’s crest view addition to Bartlett
To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that this firm has been retained by Jasy Construction Engineering
Consultants Corporation to assist in submitting the appropriate application necessary for approval
of the subdivision of the lot located at the above referenced address into two smaller lots. The
owner’s intent is to build two single-family houses (one on each lot), which is believed will be a
better use of the land. Furthermore, the owner is requesting a zoning variance for which an
application is attached.

We look forward to working with you and would be happy to answer any inquiries you
may have in this regard.

Sincerely,
M&A LAW FIRM

Ahmed R. Motiwala



.




For Office Use Only
Case # 2018-7C

gy"

)\  VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION | coummunty bgvesory
EN?

NOV-0:1 2018
PROJECT NAME LOT 72 SPLIT
VILLAGE OF
Street Address: 4438 OAKTON STREET
City, State: SKOKIE, IL_ Zip Code: 60076

Email Address: |ERERIERR  PhomeNumber: . —
Preferred Method to be contacted: Email

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

Name:  JASY CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CO NULTANTS ¢ ORY,

Street Address:

City, State; HANOVER PARK, IL Zip Code: 60133 ¢
*' Phone Number: ans Prate NI A

OWNER’S SIGNATURE: _n_d 1 M/Dnte 7/19/18

(OWNER’S SIGNATURE IS RE ‘D or A LETTER AUTHORIZING THE PETITION
SUBMITTAL,)

. ACTION REQUESTED (Plears check all that apply)

___ Annexation ___ Text Amendment
PUD (preliminary) ___ Rezoning See Dropdown 1o See Dropdown

___ . PUD (final) Special Use for

_:.() Subdivizion (preliminary) / Variation: __feec 3“,3& H' 3 9" rebuchen
Subdivision (final)

Site Plan (please describe use: commercial, industrial, square footage):_

Unified Business Center Sign Plan
Other (please describe)

Development Application Page 1




SIGN PLAN REQUIRED? No
(Note: A Unified Business Center Sign Plan is required for four or more individual offices or businesses sharing a
common building entrance or private parking lot.)

PROPERTY INFORMATION

Common Address/General Location of Property: 110N. CHASE AVENUE (LOT 72)

Property Index Mumber ("Tax PIN"/""Parcel ID"): 06-35-112-013-0000

Zoning: Existing: SR-4 Land Use: Existing; . See Dropdown
(Refer to Official Zoning Map)
Proposed: SR-4 Proposed: ‘See Dropdown

Property: Village Center Residential

Comprehensive Plan Designation for this
(Refer to Future Land Use Map)

13,858 SQ. FT.

Acreage:

For PUD's and Subdivisions:
No. of Lots/Units:

Minimum Lot: Area 6,000 Width 65 FT Depth 102 FT.
Average Lot: Area Width Depth
APPLICANT’S EXPERTS (If applicable, including name, address, phone and email)
Attorney
Engineer
Other

Development Application Page 2



FINDINGS OF FACT FOR VARIATIONS .

Both the Zoning Board of Appeals and the Village Board must decide if the requested variation is in
harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance and if there is a practical
difficulty or hardship in carrying out the strict letter of the regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall make findings bas

ed upon evidence presented on the following

standards: (Please res ach of t standards in writing bel a -
is important that you write legiblv sponses as thi ication will be incly i
the r Vi B eview.)

1. That the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical condition of the specific property
involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out.

When the two (front and back) setbacks are accounted for there is only 32.73 feet of depth
remaining which is not sufficient to build a house upon. -

2. That conditions upon which the petition for a variation is based are unique to the property for
which the variation is sought and are not applicable, generally, to other property within the same
zoning classifications. '

This lot is unique given the fact that it is an older neighborhood and the lot is smaller than
other neighborhood.

3. That the purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out
of the property. ’

This is correct, without the variation, the Seller would be unable to build a house upon the
lot.

Development Application Page 2



4.. That the alleged difficulty or hardship is caused by the provisions of this Title and has not been
created by any person presently having an interest in the property.

True the setback line is based upon existing title. The lot is large enough to accommodate
two houses if subdivided, however, based upon the current zoning, it would not be
possible without the zoning variance.

5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other
property or improvements in the neighborhoods in which the property is located.

True, on the contrary, with the proposed zoning variance, the owner would be able to build
two standard houses on the lot which will conform with the neighborhood in general.

6. That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent
property, or suostantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or increase the danger of
fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the
adjacent neighborhood.

That is correct.

7. That the granting of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege
that is denied by the provisions of this Title to other lands, structures or buildings in the same
* district.

That is correct.

Variation Application Page 3



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I understand that by signing this form, that the property in question may be visited by village staff
and Board/Commission members throughout the petition process and that the petitioner listed
above will be the primary contact for all correspondence issued by the village.

1 certify that the information and exhibits submitted are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and that I am to file this application and act on behalf of the above signatures.

ubmittal will got be processed until ALL

Any late, incoiaplete or non-conforming applicatj
materials and fees have been submitted. ﬂ d

ra

SIGNATURE OF PETITIONER: y
PRINT NAME: JASY CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS CORPORATION

DATE: 7/19/18 v

F ANT ME

The undersigned hereby acknowledges his/her obligation to reimburse the Village of Bartlett for
all necessary and reasonable expenses incurred by the Village for review and procesging of the
application. Further, the undersigned acknowledges that he/she understands that these expenses
will be billed on an ongoing basis as they are incurred and will be due within thirty days. All
reviews of the petition will be discontinued if the expenses have not been paid within that period.
Such expenses may include, but are not limited to: attomey’s fees, engineer fees, public advertising
expenses, and recording fees. Please complete the information below and sign.

OHAHHED

NAME OF PERSON TO BE BILLED: JAMEEL AHMED

ADDRESS:

Mancve s '?a ¢ l’—_, (L (eO\L7

PHONE NUMBER: ____

EMAIL:

L, m QW

DATE: ’1\\"\ ‘\ %C

Development Application Page 13



ZONING/LOCATION MAP

Lot 72 Moureau's Crest View Addition Split
Case #18-22 - Preliminary/Final Plat of Subdivision
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PRELIMINARY / FINAL PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION OF
RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 72 MOUREAU'S CREST VIEW
ADDITION TO BARTLETT

[3

GRAPHIC SCALE
20 o 10 20
STATE OF ILLINOIS) [
58
(INFEET)
COUNTY OF CO0K) =Tl

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT I, MICHAEL R. ROGINA, AN ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
HAVE SURVEYED, RESUBDIVIDED AND PLATTED FOR THE OWNERS THEREOF THAT PART OF THE
SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER(S) OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 9
EAST EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

LOT 72 IN MOUREAU'S CREST VIEW ADDITION TO BARTLETT, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE
SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 9
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN BARTLETT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND
CONTAINING 0.318 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

TFURTHER CERTIFY THAT IRON STAKES HAVE BEEN SET AT ALL LOT CORNERS, POINTS OF
CURVATURE AND TANGENCY, EXCEPT WHERE CONCRETE MONUMENTS ARE INDICATED, AND
THAT THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN CORRECTLY REPRESENTS SAID SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION,

DIMENSIONS ARE GIVEN TN FEET AND DECIMAL PARTS THEREGF,

A RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 72 IN MOUREAU'S CREST VIEW ADDITION TO BARTLETT, BEING A
SUBDIVISION IN THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 35,

TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

IN BARTLETT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

LOT 71
1 FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROPERTY FALLS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS LOT NBBIS703"E TOBEREMAZD
WITH COHERETE e |
OF THE VILLAGE OF BARTLETT, AND I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT NO PART OF SAID PROPERTY 62 oo 135.01° [
15 STTUATED WITHIN A FLOOD HAZARD AREA, AS PER NATIONAL FLODD INSURANCE PROGRAM, PIE ST
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP, COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 1703103061, EFFECTIVE DATE 8/19/2008, = GO.00 i I LOT 9
) 19 PUDE — =
DATED AT JOLIET, ILLINOIS, THIS DAY OF 20 - R [T T + 1 2
w
| HH | | T
1 lin =l
- | LOT 1 | | | | =8
ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR #3516 —_— | 16570 57 moREORLESS | i g | =B
LICENSE EXPIRES 11/ 30/20 i | I LOT 2 g : w o
| l| : 7712,58 SF MORE OR LESS EI | 7
= ][ | i | g g =§ <
OWNER'S AND SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATE i | 58 g [ 5o Ty
- = ﬂ ™ | fesd El 5 R =
oERl 18151 : SR e O
STATE OF ILLINOIS) 23a V&7 NI | =S
$s £3| ! 18 | -8
COUNTY OF COOK) g H [ | | | | 3
& |
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE UNDERSIGNED IS (ARE) THE LEGAL OWNER(S) OF THE LAND | : { | | i LOT 10
DESCRIBED ON THE SUBJECT PLAT, AND HAS (HAVE) CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED AND | i | |
SUBDIVIDED AS INDICATED THEREON, FOR THE USES AND PURPOSES HEREIN SET FORTH, : | I B ]
ALSO, THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE PROPERTY BEING SUBDIVIDED AFORESAID AND, | o _ o S |
TO THE BEST OF OWNER'S KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, SAID SUBDIVISION LTES ENTIRELY - T T UG ST T | _:— % BULLDING SETBACKLINE 1
WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE U-46 SCHOOL DISTRICT. L B ]
DATED THIS DAY OF 20 . 17 EE 15 PUDE |
Qow
o
PIPE 60.02' 75,00 — ! —
135.02'
JASY CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING TO BE REPLACGED
CONSULTANTS CORPORATION WITH CONCRETE 589°01'22"W
OWNER(S) MONUMENT
NOTARY'S CERTIFICATE 1
. E. NORTH AVENUE
55 (HERETOFORE DEDIDCATED)
COUNTY OF COOK) é _ _
T HEREBY CERTIFY THAT » WHOSE NAVE(S) IS (ARE) I VILLAGE ENGINEER'S CERTIHCATE
SUBSCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATE IS (ARE) KNOWN TO ME AS SUCH OWNER(S). VILLAGE OF BARTLETT CERTIFICATE 0 T e
STATE OF ILLINOIS)
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND NOTARIAL SEAL THIS DAY OF 0. STATE OF ILLINOLS) <s
S5 COUNTY OF COOK)
COUNTY OF COOK)
I VILLAGE ENGINEER OF THE
NOTARY PUBLIC APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF VILLAGE OF BARTLETT, COOK, DUPAGE AND KANE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS,
SEAL TRUSTEES OF VILLAGE OF BARTLETT, COOK, DUPAGE AND KANE P N —— CERTIFY THAT THE LAND IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE SUBJECT PLATTED
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, T = AREA AS DESCRIBED IN THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:
THIS DAY OF 20___. TITLED:. DATED,
VILLAGE TREASURER CERTIFICATE
LAST REVISED:
BY: STATE OF ILLINOIS)
PLAN COMMISSION CERTIFICATE VILLAGE PRESIDENT ss PREPARED BY:_
COUNTY OF COOK)
STATE OF ILLINOIS) ATTEST: MEET THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS OF THE VILLAGE OF BARTLETT.
sS I, TREASURER FOR THE VILLAGE OF BARTLETT,
COUNTY OF COOK) COOK, DUPAGE AND KANE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO DATED THIS DAY OF 20
VILLAGE CLERK DELINQUENT OR UNPAID CURRENT OR FORFEITED SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS OR ANY DEFERRED
REVIEWED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF BARTLETT, COOK, DUPAGE, o CEPTED INSTALLMENTS THEREOF THAT HAVE BEEN APPORTIONED AGAINST THE TRACT OF LAND
AND KANE COUNTIES, ILLINOISTHIS ____DAYOF_________ 20 . SLULITY EASEMENTS APPROVED AND AC INCLUDED ON THE SUBJECT PLAT. BY:
VILLAGE ENGINEER
COMMONWEALTH EDISON DATED THIS DAY OF 2
BY: . "
I RE: ; vl BARTLETT B TILITY PROVISIONS
PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN SIGNATL = %:LAGE — ILLAGE OF UBLIC 1) EASEMENT
LU PRINTED NAME: APERPETUAL EASEMENT 15 HEREBY GRANTED TO THE VILLAGE OF BARTLETT, COOK,
TIME COUNTY CLERK CERTIFICATE, DUPAGE AND KANE COUNTIES, TILINOIS, 115 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGHS, OVER, UPON,
AT&T ACROSS, THROUGH AND UNDER THOSE PORTIONS OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED REAL
PLAN COMMISSION SECRETARY STATE OF ILLINOIS) ESTATE DESIGNATED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT OM THIS PLAT, FOR THE PURPOSE
SIGNATURE: B OF INSTALLING, LAYING, CONSTRUCTING, OPERATING, MAINTAINING, REPAIRING,
DATE COUNTY OF CODK) RENEWING AND REPLACING: WATERMAINS, SANITARY SEWER LINES, STORM SEWER
RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE PRINTED NAME: — LINES, STREET LIGHT CABLES AND ANY OTHER VILLAGE UTILITIES, TOGETHER WITH
TITLE L COUNTY CLERK OF COOK ALL APPURTENANT STRUCTURES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO: MANHOLES, WET
STATE OF ILLINOIS) COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO DELINQUENT WELLS, LIFT STATIONS, FIRE HYDRANTS, VALVE VAULTS, STREET LIGHTS AND ANY AND
s NICOR GENERAL TAXES, NO UNPAID CURRENT GENERAL TAXES, NO UNPAID FORFEITED ALL OTHER FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT REQUIRED FOR THE PURPOSE OF SERVING THE
COUNTY OF COOK) TAXES, AND NO REDEEMABLE TAX SALES AGAINST ANY OF THE LAND INCLUDED ABOVE DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE WITH WATER SERVICE, SANITARY SEWER SERVICE,
SIGNATURE: IN THE SUBJECT PLAT. STORM WATER COLLECTION, STREET LIGHTING AND OTHER MUNICIPAL SERVICES AND
DATE FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING INGRESS TO AND EGRESS FROM THE PROPERTY
THIS INSTRUMENT WAS FILED FOR RECORD TN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE OF COOK PRINTED NAME: I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I HAVE RECEIVED ALL STATUTORY FEES IN SHOWN HEREON FOR EMERGENCY VEHICLES OF ANY AND ALL TYPES WHATSOEVER.
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, THIS DAY OF 20 TITLE CONNECTION WITH THE SUBJECT PLAT. IN NO EVENT SHALL ANY PERMANENT BUILDING(S) 8E PLACED UPON THE SAID EASEMENT
AT______ OCLOCK __.M. AND RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. COMCAST, AREAS, BUT THE EASEMENT AREAS MAY BE USED FOR GARDENS, SHRUBS, LANDSCAPING
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL AT COOK COUNTY, IU-‘NOIS THIS AND OTHER SUCH PURPOSES THAT DO NOT, AND WILL NOT IN THE FUTURE, INTERFERE
SIGNATURE: DAY OF UNREASONABLY WITH THE EASEMENT RIGHTS HEREIN GRANTED TO THE VILLAGE OF
BY: DATE BARTLETT,
COOK COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS PRINTED NAME: BY: REV. 2 - PER VILLAGE OF BARTLETT REVIEW 1/ 23/19
TITLE COUNTY CLERK

REV. 1 - PER VILLAGE OF BARTLETT REVIEW 12/ 18/18

RECEWED
COMMUNITY DEVELQPMENTYT

JAN 75 2019

VILLAGE OF
ARTLETT

EASEMENT PROVISIONS

AN EASEMENT FOR SERVING THE SUBDIVISION AND OTHER PROPERTY WITH ELECTRIC
AND COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE IS HEREBY RESERVED FOR AND GRANTED TO:

COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY, NICOR, COMCAST
D
AT & T, GRANTEES

THEIR RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, JOINTLY AMD SEVERALLY, TO INSTALL,
OPERATE, MAINTAIN AND REMOVE, FROM TIME TO TIME, FACILITIES USED IN CONNECTION
WITH OVERHEAD AND UNDERGROUND TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION OF ELECTRICITY
AND SOUNDS AND SIGNALS IN, OVER, UNDER, ALONG AND UPON THE SURFACE OF THE
PROPERTY SHOWN WITHIN THE DOTTED LINES ON THE PLAT AND MARKED “EASEMENT",
THE PROPERTY DESIGNATED IN THE DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM ANDYTIR GN THIS
PLAT AS "COMMON ELEMENTS", AND THE PROPERTY DESIGNATED ON THE PLAT AS A
"COMMON AREA OR AREAS, AND THE PROPERTY DESIGNATED ON THE PLAT FOR STREETS
AND ALLEYS, WHETHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE, TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHT TO INSTALL
REQUIRED SERVICE CONNECTIONS OVER OR UNDER THE SURFACE OF EACH LOT AND
COMMON AREA OR AREAS, TO SERVE IMPROVEMENTS THEREON, OR ON ADJACENT LOTS,
AND COMMON AREA OR AREAS, THE RIGHT TO CUT, TRIM, OR REMOVE TREES, BUSHES
AND ROOTS AS MAY BE REASONABLY REQUIRED INCTGENT TO THE RIGHTS HEREIN GIVEN,
AND THE RIGHT 70 ENTER UPON THE SUBDIVIDED PROPERTY FOR ALL SUCH PURPOSES.
OBSTRUCTIONS SHALL NOT BE PLACED OVER GRANTEES' FACILITIES OR IN, UPON OR OVER
THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE DOTTED LINES MARKED "EASEMENT* WITHOUT THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF GRANTEES. AFTER INSTALLATION OF ANY SUCH FACILITIES, THE
GRADE OF THE SUBLIVIDED PROPERTY SHALL NOT BE ALTERED IN A MANNER SO AS TO
INTERFERE WITH THE PROPER OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE THEREOF.

THE TERM "COMMON ELEMENTS" SHALL HAVE THAT MEANING SET FORTH FOR SUCH
TERMS IN SECTION 2(E) OF "AN ACT IN RELATION TO CONDOMINIUMS"
(ILLINOIS REVISED STATUTES, CH. 30, PAR. 302(F), AS AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME.

THE TERM "COMMON AREA OR AREAS" IS DEFINED AS A LOT, PARCEL OR AREA OF REAL
PROPERTY, THE BENEFICIAL USE AND ENJOYMENT OF WHICH 15 RESERVED IN WHOLE AS
AN APPURTENANCES TO THE SEPARATELY OWNED LOTS, PARCELS OR AREAS WITHIN THE
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT, EVEN THOUGH SUCH BE OTHERWISE DESIGNATED ON THE PLAT

BY TERMS SUCH AS, “OUTLOT", "COMMON ELEMENTS", "OPEN SPACE", "OPEN AREA",
"COMMON GROUND", "PARKING AND COMMON AREA", THE TERMS "COMMON AREA

OR AREAS" AND COMMON ELEMENTS" INCLUDE REAL PROPERTY SURFACED WITH
INTERIOR DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS, BUT EXCLLUDE REAL PROPERTY PHYSICALLY
OCCUPIED BY A BUILDING, SERVICE BUSINESS DISTRICT OR STRUCTURES SUCH AS A POOL
OR RETENTION POND, OR MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT.

RELOCATION OF FACILITIES WILL BE DONE BY GRANTEES AT COST OF GRANTORALOT
OWNER, UPON WRITTEN REQUEST.

NOTE:

1. FENCES INSTALLED IN THE FRONT AND CORNER SIDE YARDS SHALL NOT EXCEED 4
FEET IN HEIGHT.

2. PARKWAY TREES SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TRUNK DIAMETER (MEASURED 12 INCHES
ABOVE THE GRADE) OF NOT LESS THAN TWO AND ONE-HALF IHCHES  (2-1/2") AND SHALL
BE PLANTED IN ALL PARKWAYS BY THE SUBDIVIDER/DEVELOPER THROUGHOUT THE
ENTIRE SUBDIVISION ALONG EXISTING RIGHTS OF WAY ABUTTING THE PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT, IF TREES ARE MISSING. PARKWAYS TREES SHALL BE SPACED NOT LESS
THAN FORTY FEET (40') NOR MORE THAN SDXTY FEET (60') APART. PARKWAY TREES
SHALL BE CENTERED WITHIN PARKWAYS BETWEEN THE CURB AND SIDEWALK OR

BIXE PATH. NO PARKWAY TREES SHALL BE PLANTED WITHIN FIFTY FEET (50°) OF

THE INTERSECTION, MEASURED FROM THE LOT CORNER OF THE TWO (2) INTERSECTING
LOT LINES ADJACENT TO THE PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY, REASCHABLE EFFORT SHALL

BE MADE TO KEEP PARKWAY TREES FROM OBSTRUCTING THE VIEW OF CROSS TRAFFIC
AT INTERSECTIONS, AND FROM INTERFERING WITH UPRIGHT UTILITIES, SUCH AS FIRE
HYDRANTS AND STREETLIGHTS. TREE PLANTING |.OCATIONS ARE TO BE STAKED FOR
REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE VILLAGE ARBORIST PRIOR TO PLANTING.

3. THE MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS SURFACE PERCENTAGE FOR ALL BUILDINGS
AND STRUCTURES (PRINCIPAL AND ACCESSORY USES, EXCLUDING POOLS)
INCLUDING PAVED, IMPERVIOUS, OR TRAVELED SURFACES ON A LOT SHALL
NOT EXCEED 40%.

NOTE:
PUDE PUBLIC UTILITY RETURN / MAIL TO:
DRAINAGE EASEMENT VILLAGE OF BARTLETT
BSL  BUILDING SETBACK ATTN: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
™ SE';ESURED 228 S. MAIN
(R} RECORD BARTLETT, IL 60103

6392.01

ROGINA

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, LLC
1225 Channahon Road  Jollet, Unols ~ 815/723-0777  FAX B15/729-0762
Frofessional Design Firm License No, 184006843 - Exp. 4/30/2019

PIN 06-35-112-013

Copyright ® 2018 ROGINA Englneers & Surveyors LLC, All Rights Reserved
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1/3 BUAAL OF OVERALL POST LENG™
{28 Mg

‘: \!—tm FENCE
| \ , \\ - 0P L
14421 Oalley Ave
| ), Orfand Paik, IL 60462
| LOT 71 \ | N e
| /
| EXISTING o | _ A Architectural Studio, Ltd.
LOT 62 i ' :‘:SX’E\T V?;q' l ."\’ = « /.,.5-— - v; - s www.archstudiolld.net
i CONCRETE ! ;
; ‘ DWELLING ! . oD l ASPHALT - [ ;
N88057'03"E DRIVE PIPE { APRON | i T i e
OLD == t AN 1 ] ' HIHZAERERTS — — Rl o it v s
PIPE el e 135.01 o . ' £ 28 e e
A __"rs_ohoa_-]_ - : \ e \ Fa i GRADE
,"\___/‘/ ! — b 35__?" EXr AL _?ﬂ ‘ = e SIS AN G
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